

12 June 2023

Members of Fire and Rescue Authority.

Bedford Borough Councillors: G Coombs, M Headley and A Sultan

Central Bedfordshire Councillors: R Goodchild, G Mackey, M Versallion and R Wenham

Luton Borough Councillors: A Ali, J Burnett, M Hussain and S Hussain

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the **Fire and Rescue Authority** to be held at **Dunstable Community Fire Station**, **Lecture Theatre** on **Tuesday**, **20 June 2023** starting at **10.00 am**, for the transaction of the following business:

Graham Britten Monitoring Officer

AGENDA

Item	Subject	Lead	Purpose of Discussion
1.	Election of Chair 2023/24	Monitoring Officer	
2.	Election of Vice Chair 2023/24	Monitoring Officer	
3.	Apologies	Democratic and Regulatory Services Supervisor	

Item	Subject	Lead	Purpose of Discussion
4.	Minutes	Chair	To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2023 (Pages 5 - 16)
5.	Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests	Chair	Members are requested to disclose the existence and nature of any disclosable pecuniary interest and any other interests as required by the Fire Authority's Code of Conduct (see note below).
6.	Communications	Chair	
7.	Public Participation	Chair	To receive any questions put to the Authority under the Public Participation Scheme
8.	Membership	Monitoring Officer	To consider a report (Pages 17 - 20)
9.	Committee Appointments	Monitoring Officer	To consider a report (Pages 21 - 28)
10.	Appointment of Representatives to Outside Bodies for 2023/24	Monitoring Officer	To consider a report (Pages 29 - 32)
11.	Member Development	CFO	To consider a report (Pages 33 - 38)
	Next Meeting	10.00 am on 19 July Theatre	2023 at Dunstable Community Fire Station, Lecture

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

From 1 July 2012 new regulations were introduced on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs). The interests are set out in the Schedule to the Code of Conduct adopted by the Fire Authority on 28 June 2012. Members are statutorily required to notify the Monitoring Officer (MO) of any such interest which they, or a spouse or civil partner or a person they live with as such, have where they know of the interest.

A Member must make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and any other interest as defined in paragraph 7 of the Fire Authority's Code of Conduct at any meeting of the Fire Authority, a Committee (or Sub-Committee) at which the Member is present and, in the case of a DPI, withdraw from participating in the meeting where an item of business which affects or relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes apparent.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY MEETING HELD ON 30 MARCH 2023

Present: Councillors C Atkins, R Berry, J Burnett, J Chatterley, P Duckett (Chair), D Franks, J Gambold,

M Headley, D McVicar and Y Waheed (Vice-Chair)

CFO A Hopkinson, DCFO C Bigland, ACFO A Kibblewhite and ACO G Chambers, Mr G Britten (MO), Ms

L Fair and AC I Evans

22-23/FRA/79 Apologies

An apology for absence was received from Councillor I Shingler.

Steve Frank was unable to attend the meeting due to illness. The Deputy Chief Fire Officer had tendered his apologies for lateness.

22-23/FRA/80 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

22-23/FRA/81 Communications

Meetings with Members of Parliament and High Sheriff

The Chair reported that meetings continued to be held with local Members of Parliament so that they could understand the depth and breadth of services and activities undertaken by a modern Fire and Rescue Service. Additional meetings with local Members of Parliament continued to be arranged.

A meeting had also taken place with the High Sheriff, Lady Jane Clifford.

The Chief Fire Officer added that meeting arranged with the Fire Services Minister had been postponed and would be rescheduled. This may coincide with visit of the Director of Fire and Resilience being planned for in late April/early May 2023.

Pay Awards

The Chair advised that the Grey Book pay awards had been agreed.

White Paper on 'Reforming our Fire Service'

The Chief Fire Officer reported Government's response to the consultation on the White Paper on 'Reforming our Fire Service' was expected before the summer recess.

22-23/FRA/82 Minutes

The Assistant Chief Officer and Treasurer provided clarity on the Members Allowances report that had been submitted to the previous meeting. In addition to agreeing the scheme for the 2023/24, Members should also have been made aware of the back dated pay to which they were entitled following the agreement of the Green Book pay award in June 2022. As this was a set amount of £1925, it had been agreed that a 4.04% increase on allowances would be applied from the start of the 2022 financial year.

In response to a question from Councillor Headley, the Monitoring Officer confirmed that, as in previous years, Members had agreed that the increase be aligned to that which was awarded to non-operational staff. Therefore, the provision of, and entitlement to, back pay was in accordance with the Members Allowances Scheme for 2022/23, agreed in February 2022.

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Authority held on 2 February 2023 be confirmed as a true record.

22-23/FRA/83 Public Participation

Members noted that no questions had been received in accordance with the public participation scheme approved at the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Authority held on 5 April 2000 (Minute 99/fa/94 refers).

22-23/FRA/84 Audit and Standards Committee 2 March 2023

Members received the Minutes of the informal meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee held on 2 March 2023 for information and to ratify the decisions made at that meeting.

In introducing the Minutes, Councillor Atkins highlighted the discussion that had been held with the Authority's external auditors, EY, regarding the timing of the audit of the 2021/22 accounts and the pressure this would place on the finance team who would simultaneously

be working on the closure of the 2022/23 accounts. The EY representative had confirmed that additional flexibility for response to queries would be provided in recognition of this.

Councillor Atkins recommended that the Authority, in ratifying the decisions made at the meeting, approve the Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24. This included audits on contaminants and staff health and safety, strategic approach to partnerships and collaboration, governance of the Project Management Office and stock control in stores and technical bay.

Councillor Atkins concluded by thanking the Assistant Chief Officer and his team for their support of the Committee over the past year.

Councillor Berry commented that, although he had submitted his apologies for the meeting, these had not been recorded.

RESOLVED:

That the submitted Minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2023 be received and the decisions made by the Committee, informally, be ratified, subject to the inclusion of Councillor Berry's apologies.

22-23/FRA/85 Executive Committee meeting 14 March 2023

The Chair submitted the Minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on 14 March 2023.

The Executive Committee had considered a number of constitutional documents in great depth, and a number of changes had been proposed and incorporated into these as a result of these discussions. This included emphasising the Chair's discretion in allowing members of the public to put questions to the Authority without notice and reducing the number of Members required to call in a decision to two.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the submitted minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2023 be received.
- 2. That the following documents be approved:
 - i. draft Terms of Reference for the Authority and the Executive and Audit and Standards Committee;
 - ii. draft procedural rules for Task and Finish Groups (including Call in Task and Finish Groups);
 - iii. draft procedural Standing Orders for the Authority and its Committees;
 - iv. an additional procedural Standing Order (6b for call-in); and
 - v. draft Scheme of Delegation to Officers.

22-23/FRA/86 Treasury Management Strategy and Practices

The Assistant Chief Officer and Treasurer presented the Authority's Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Treasury Management Policies to the Authority for approval.

Members were asked to agree to increase the maximum amount of fixed term deposit placed with any one institution has from £5 million to £7 million and the maximum amount of fixed term deposit placed with a Group, where a number of institutions were under one ownership from £7 million to £10 million.

Members were also being requested to confirm whether they wished Treasury Management training to be provided by Link Asset Services after the elections.

In relation to long-term borrowing, there had been no change in these levels from the previous report to the Authority. The Authority currently had investments of £19 million, with a projected level of investment income of £195,000 forecast for 2023/24. No new capital borrowing was being proposed at this point in time.

Although it was recognised that these increases were being put to the Authority following consultation with the Authority's treasury management advisors, Members expressed the view that this proposal may not be prudent given the current financial landscape and that these limits could be revisited later on in the year. Considerations in assessment of risk included the absence of any investment guarantee for public sector bodies and current volatility in the financial markets.

The Assistant Chief Officer reported that the Authority's treasury management advisors had expressed the view that any increase to maximum amounts of fixed term deposits must be set at a level that both he, and the Authority Members were comfortable with. Therefore, he suggested that the current maximum amounts be retained and any increases be considered when the Mid-Year Treasury Management Report was presented to the Authority in the autumn.

As there was currently volatility in Public Works Loan Board rates and inflation, if there was an opportunity to reschedule the Authority's existing debt, this would be raised with the Chair at the earliest possible opportunity and fed back to the next Authority meeting.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the following documents be approved:
 - i. Treasury Management Strategy Statement
 - ii. Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy
 - iii. Treasury Management Practices, subject to the removal of the increases of the maximum amount of fixed term deposits placed with any one institution and with a Group, with this to be reviewed later on in the year.

2. That the Authority be requested to consider if it wishes to receive Treasury Management training in 2023/24 following the appointment of Members after the local government elections in May 2023.

22-23/FRA/87 Proposed Indicators and Targets for 2023/24

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer submitted the proposed indicators and targets for 2023/24 to the Authority for consideration. The majority of targets had been based on the five year averages and these were provided in the report, along with the previous targets and proposed targets.

The indicators and targets had remained broadly the same in Prevention and Protection.

In the area of response, the Deputy Chief Fire Officer was seeking views from the Authority as to whether the indicator measuring the percentage of occasions global crewing enabled nine riders (5 and 4) on two pumps responses (Wholetime) should be removed or temporarily suspended for one year. His rationale was that the Service had determined to improve county wide fire cover by more frequently deploying the fifth rider on Wholetime appliances to cover deficiencies in on-call fire appliance availability. In simple terms, moving the fifth firefighter from a Wholetime pump with 5 crew to an on-call appliance with only three crew available would enable two fire appliances to be mobilised with the minimum crewing of 4 (a total of 8) rather than a single fire appliance with a crew of 5.

The Chief Fire Officer added that this proposal had been developed in response to the continued challenges around on-call availability. As this was being addressed by the on-call improvement programme, it was hoped that, in future, these global crewing levels could be maintained.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer also reported on proposed changes to the call-handling indicators. As discussed at previous meetings, benchmarking exercises had identified that the current target was not in line with other Fire and Rescue Services across the country. For example, the average call-handling time to primary fires for Bedfordshire incidents, at 60 seconds, was far below the average of 90-120 second target in place at other Services. It was therefore proposed to increase the target to 90 seconds.

Whilst Members expressed support for the reasoning behind these proposed changes, it was also noted that some of these indicators formed part Authority's and long standing standards of Emergency Response set out in the Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP). The CRMP latest had already undergone extensive consultation and was being presented to the Authority for final approval later on in the meeting.

In response to a comment on the status of the CRMP, the Chief Fire Officer confirmed that the Service had not consulted on changing the standards of emergency response even though he believed they needed a through review to ensure they were easily understood and enabled ready comparison with other Services. This would be undertaken during 2023/24 now that the new Performance and Insight Manager was in post in this CRMP.

Following this discussion, it was agreed that the current Response indicators remain as they were, but that additional indicators be developed to provide more insight.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer reported on new Equality, Diversity and Inclusion and Our People indicators and on the indicators that were now being reported to the Corporate Management Team rather than Members as they related to operational management of the business.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the proposed KPI targets for 2023/24 be received.
- 2. That the agreed targets be approved for inclusion in the Service Performance Management Framework, subject to the exclusion of the Response targets, which are to remain as set out in the Authority's Community Risk Management Plan.

22-23/FRA/88 Q3 2022/23 Performance Report (Sept - Dec)

Members received a summary of organisational performance at the end of the third quarter of the current performance year.

In introducing the report, the Deputy Chief Fire Officer commented on the positive direction of progress; however, some areas of concern remained. These were detailed in the report, along with the efforts being taken to improve performance.

Prevention

It was noted that the third quarter included part of the summer period. As this had been unusually dry and hot, there had been an increase in the number of incidents. There had also been a general rise in activity following the years affected most by the COVID pandemic and incident levels would continue to be monitored.

The Head of Prevention and Protection agreed that all areas had been impacted by the exceptionally hot and dry summer, with significant increases in both accidental and deliberate fires. The spate conditions had been reflected in the figures and it was likely that this would also be reflected in national data.

In relation to the ban of sales of disposable barbeques during the hottest periods in the summer, Members were advised that this action had been taken by responsible retailers across the UK as there was no legislation preventing these sales.

Councillor Burnett requested that the Chief Fire Officer continue to support local and national campaigns working with retailers to prevent the sale of disposable barbeques during peak fire conditions and to report back to the next meeting of the Authority on progress.

The Chief Fire Officer commented that there had already been 60 incidents that qualified as wildfires across the UK in the current calendar year.

Protection

Councillor Franks expressed his thanks to the Head of Prevention and Protection and his team regarding recent activity in relation to an unlicensed HMO in Luton.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer reported that positive performance had been demonstrated against all protection performance indicators, with the exception of mobilisation to Automatic Fire Alarms, the reasons for which were set out in the report.

The Head of Prevention and Protection advised that approximately 40 formal notices had been issued by the Protection team during the current financial year. There appeared to be significant issues in terms of the quality of housing within the County, particularly in the southern parts of the County. The Protection Team worked with landlords and many properties were made operational within a day of a notice being served.

Response

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer referred to his previous comments in relation to the general increase in incidents, with all areas reporting a substantial increase in activity.

The deep-dive into the performance on some of the response targets was nearing its conclusion, with the results being reported to the Lead Member prior to being submitted to the Authority for information.

The whole-time global crewing indicator had been discussed earlier in the meeting, with the Deputy Chief Fire Officer reiterating that overall pump availability was maximised by deploying the fifth person on a two pump station to increase on call pump availability. This increased overall availability and the percentage of calls that could be responded to within the response times.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer reported that additional resource had been allocated to the on-call improvement project to improve availability which would lead to future improvements in performance against these indicators.

In relation to the percentage of primary fires attended within 10 minutes, which was subject to the deep-dive review, measures were being implemented to improve performance incrementally in both the control room and at fire stations. These included changes to the pre-rigging areas to reduce the travel time to mobilise.

Members challenged the continued level of suboptimal performance. As the response standards were set out in the Community Risk Management Plan, it was important that performance improved. It appeared, in the current report, to be that the percentage of primary fires attended within 10 minutes was significantly lower than it had been the previous year.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer explained that, in addition to the improvement measures being introduced, there was also work being undertaken to improve confidence in the data being captured. This was not necessarily measuring the correct activity when compared to national benchmarking data. There was also a large difference in response times to be expected when responding to an addressable location in comparison to a vehicle fire at an unidentified location on the M1. As he had previously mentioned, a meeting with the Lead Member for response had been arranged after Easter to present the results of the call-in of performance in this area.

The Assistant Chief Fire Officer added that the calls mobilised to also included calls from a third party, such as the Ambulance Service. These required additional time to mobilise to and therefore would impact on performance.

In relation to a question on recruitment and retention, and how this linked to the cadet programme, the Assistant Chief Fire Officer reported that the Service attended careers fairs and events, and had recently been invited to an "Employability Day" organised by Luton Borough Council in April.

In concluding the discussion of the response targets, the Chief Fire Officer emphasised that emergency response was the core function of the Service and that improving response times was his top priority.

Empowering

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer reported that the majority of the empowering performance indicators were green, with two areas of slight decrease, one of which was the result of a crew being unable to complete Working at Height training as they had been called to an operational incident. The other was related to PDRPro and was being addressed.

Utilising

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer advised that only one indicator was amber and the reasons for this were set out in the report.

Maximising

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer reported on the one amber indicator: percentage of uncontested invoices paid within 30 days. Parts of the approval process were now being automated and it was hoped that this would speed up the process. Training for new budget managers continued.

RESOLVED:

That the Service's performance against the delivery of the Authority's Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) at the end of the third quarter 2022-23 and any issues arising be acknowledged.

22-23/FRA/89 CRMP pre-publication report

The Chief Fire Officer introduced the final draft of the 2023-27 Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) prior to being prepared for publication.

It was noted that the CRMP had gone through an extensive consultation process and had been well-received by the public and partner organisations.

A decision had been made to retain the four-year life of the CRMP, which corresponded with the election cycle, rather than extend it to 5 years.

The CRMP itself began with a forward from the Chair and the Chief Fire Officer and then went on to explain about the Authority and the Service, the values and behaviours and the adopted approach to risk management.

Six strategic commitments were set out in the CRMP, with the first three focused on the delivery of core services and the latter three focused on enabling the delivery of those services.

The actions for 2023/24 were set out at Appendix 1 to the report and included:

- making better use of digital technology to improve engagement and build a better risk profile of the local community so that
 prevention services can be targeted to the most vulnerable;
- taking delivery of a new Road Safety Vehicle, funded through the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, to raise awareness
 of the dangers of poor driving;
- improving emergency response performance;
- continuing to invest in recruitment, development and retention of staff;
- updating the Service's range of specialist capabilities to ensure that it is line with the changing risk landscape;
- hosting Bedfordshire Local Resilience Forum from April 2023;
- incorporating learning from the London Fire Brigade Cultural Review report, to ensure that staff are provided with a working environment in which they feel safe and supported;
- establishing a Productivity and Efficiency Board to ensure that a balanced budget is prepared over the life of the CRMP; and
- improving the availability of on-call fire appliances.

In response to a question on the Road Safety Vehicle, the Deputy Chief Fire Officer reported that this was a virtual reality multi-seated van.

In response to a question about the gender and race pay gaps, the Assistant Chief Fire Officer advised that the gender pay gap was reported on an annual basis as required by statute. She agreed that there was more that the Service could do to monitor the pay gaps based on race.

The Chief Fire Officer added that improving data capture was one of his key Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) priorities. A Head of Culture post was being created to replace the Head of Human Resources and consideration was being given as to how EDI advice could be provided throughout the organisation, including the reinstatement of a staff EDI Forum.

Members noted the intention to establish a Community Forum, which could also assist with EDI issues.

In relation to assets and ensuring links with the constituent authorities' Local Plans, the Chief Fire Officer made reference to forthcoming workshops of the Bedfordshire Chief Executives Forum where data-sharing and estates would be discussed. The Service also worked with Planning Departments to ensure it had full access to the Community Infrastructure Levy funding.

As this was the last item on the agenda, the Chair thanked all Members and Officers for their hard work and support over the year.

The Chief Fire Officer added his thanks to Members and wished those standing in the forthcoming elections good luck.

RESOLVED:

That the final draft of the Authority's next 4-year Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) covering the period 2023-27 be approved.

22-23/FRA/90 Disposal of Assets under the Scheme of Delegated Authority

The Assistant Chief Fire Officer presented a report detailing the disposal of obsolete vehicles and equipment assets during the current financial year.

Members noted that only one vehicle had been disposed of below the £10,000 threshold during the year, and this had been sold for more than expected at auction. Three vans had been due to be disposed of in 2022/23, but had been repurposed for use as vehicles for the cleaning team when this service was brought in-house.

The Service had also disposed of 151 items of equipment that had no value to the Service and would have been disposed of through waste disposal. These items generated a total net income of £29,482 after deductions and auction fees.

Four complete sets of Holmatro RTC equipment had been donated to the Ukraine as part of a National Fire Chiefs Council appeal.

Members were provided with information on the assets due to be disposed of in 2023/24. The potential income from vehicle disposal was estimated at £13,400.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the content of the report be acknowledged.
- 2. That the disposal of the equipment assets detailed in the report which collectively have the potential to achieve income over the £10,000 threshold under the scheme of delegated authority be authorised.

22-23/FRA/91 Response to the Reverend James Jones report on the Hillsborough disaster

Members were asked to sign up to The Charter for Families Bereaved through Public Tragedy. The Charter had been adopted by the National Fire Chiefs Council and most of the Fire and Rescue Authorities in the country.

The Charter set out six points to support bereaved families, including placing the public interest above the Authority's own reputation, searching for the truth, treating members of the public with respect and being accountable and open to challenge.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the contents of the report be acknowledged.
- 2. That 'The Charter for Families Bereaved through Public Tragedy' be adopted and be attested by the signatures of the Chairman and the Chief Fire Officer.

22-23/FRA/92 Work Programme

Members received the proposed work programme for 2023/24 and were asked if there were any items they would like to be included.

The Chief Fire Officer confirmed that the additional items discussed at the meeting, such as the call-in of performance against the response indicators and the proposed new set of KPIs, would be programmed in at the appropriate meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the work programme for 2023/24 be received and the 'cyclical' agenda Items for each meeting in 2023/24 be noted.

The meeting ended at 12:51pm

Author and contact:

Nicky Upton, Democratic & Regulatory Services Supervisor

Democratic.services@bedsfire.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Appendix	Title	Protective Marking
	N/A	

Implications

This table provides a short statement of the impact of the recommendations in this report and/or a reference to the relevant paragraph/s in the report.

Will this report affect any of the following?

	Yes / No	Impact / Reference
Financial Implications	No	
Risk Management	No	
Legal Implications	No	Bedfordshire Fire Services (Combination Scheme) Order 1996 (amended by Variation Order 2012)
Privacy and Security Implications	No	
Duty to Collaborate	No	

Health and Safety Implications	No	
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion	No	
Environmental Sustainability	No	
Consultation and Communication	Yes	The Democratic and Regulatory Services Supervisor has sought the latest electorate figures from each Constituent authority and liaised with both the Business Support Manager and Monitoring Officer. The Constituent authorities have advised of their respective Members appointed to the Fire Authority at each of their Annual Meetings. Details of Fire Authority membership is publicly available on the website along with attendance records for each Member.

PURPOSE:

To note the Members appointed by the Constituent Authorities to serve on the Fire Authority for 2023/24.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that:

- The contents of the report be noted; and
- A Member from each Constituent Council be authorised to report to their respective Constituent Council on the meetings of the Fire and Rescue Authority for 2023/24.

1. <u>Executive Summary</u>

1.1 Under the Bedfordshire Fire Services (Combination Scheme) Order 1996 (amended by Variation Order 2012), Part III, paragraph 12, each constituent authority shall, so far as is practicable, appoint such number of representatives to be members of the Authority as is proportionate to the number of local government electors in its area in relation to the number of such electors in the other constituent authorities' areas.

- 1.2 The local government electorate for Central Bedfordshire Council is 221,559 as at 1 December 2022 (an email received from the Central Bedfordshire Council Democratic Services Manager, dated 16 February 2023, advised of the above figure) 44.57%
- 1.3 The local government electorate for Luton Borough Council is 141,748 as at 1 December 2022 (an email received from the Luton Borough Council Electoral Services Manager, 23 January 2023, advised of the above figure) 28.64%

12

- 1.4 The local government electorate for Bedford Borough Council is 133,838 as at 1 December 2022 (an email received from the Bedford Borough Council Team Leader (Electoral Registration), 23 February 2023, advised of the above figure) 27.04 %
- 1.5 Total number of Members:

Central Bedfordshire	221,559	(44.57%)	5	Members
Luton Borough	141,748	(28.51%)	4	Members
Bedford Borough	133,838	(26.92%)	3	Members

This equates to Authority Membership for Central Bedfordshire Council 5 Members, Luton Borough 4 Members and Bedford Borough 3 Members.

1.6 To note the Constituent Authorities have appointed the following Members to serve on the Fire Authority for 2023/24:

Central Bedfordshire Council (5)

Councillors Goodchild (Liberal Democrat), Mackey (Independent), Versallion (Conservative), Wenham (Conservative), plus one Independent to be confirmed.

<u>Luton Borough Council (4)</u>

Councillors Ali (Liberal Democrat), Burnett (Labour), M Hussain (Labour), S Hussain (Labour)

Bedford Borough Council (3)

Councillors Coombs (Conservative), Sultan (Labour) and Headley (Liberal Democrat)

- 2. Reporting arrangements to Constituent Authorities during 2023/24
- 2.1 Arrangements agreed between the Fire and Rescue Authority and the constituent councils have previously provided for a representative of the constituent council on the Fire and Rescue Authority (whether the Chair or another Member), to report on meetings of the Fire and Rescue Authority to the constituent council, and answer any questions relating to the discharge of the Fire and Rescue Authority's functions.
- 2.2 Members are requested to consider arrangements to report to constituent authorities during 2023/24.

GRAHAM BRITTEN
MONITORING OFFICER

SUBJECT:

<u>Democratic.Services@bedsfire.gov.uk</u>

Nicky Upton, Democratic & Regulatory Services Supervisor

s: <u>Calendar of Meetings 2023/24</u>

Appendix	Title	Protective Marking
1	Lead Member Areas	

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

Implications

This table provides a short statement of the impact of the recommendations in this report and/or a reference to the relevant paragraph/s in the report.

Will this report affect any of the following?

	Yes / No	Impact / Reference
Financial Implications No		
Risk Management	No	
Legal Implications	Yes	The legal principles of political proportionality are to be found in sections 15-17 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. They are binding on the Authority if its members have decided to affiliate with the result that the Authority has one or more political groups. In essence they require that the majority of the number of seats on a committee should reflect the political group that holds a

		majority on the Authority, and to ensure that political groups have proportionate representation overall and ungrouped members are represented on committee. Political proportionality can be disapplied from a committee or sub-committee if there is a unanimous vote at the Authority
Privacy and Security	No	
Implications		
Duty to Collaborate	No	
Health and Safety	No	
Implications		
Equality, Diversity and	No	
Inclusion		
Environmental	No	
Sustainability		
Consultation and		Members provided with details to enable them to consider their committee
Communication		preference, considering professional qualifications, level of experience and interest in the available committees. Details of committee membership is publicly available on the website along with attendance records for each Member.

PURPOSE:

To consider making appointments to the Fire and Rescue Authority's Executive Committee (5 Members), Audit and Standards Committee (7 Members), and appoint Lead Members for 2023/24.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that for the year 2023/24:

- 1. Three Members be appointed to the Executive Committee in addition to the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of the Authority.
- 2. The remaining seven Members be appointed to the Audit and Standards Committee.
- 3. A chairman for the Audit and Standards Committee be appointed.
- 4. The Members of the Executive Committee be appointed to the Lead Member roles.

1. Executive Summary

- 1.1 The Authority is asked to consider making 3 appointments (one from each constituent council, per Standing Orders) to the Executive Committee (5 Members) to complement the ex officio appointments of the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of the Authority (Standing Order 2.6); and to appoint the remaining seven members to the Audit and Standards Committee (7 Members). As per Standing Orders, the Authority shall not appoint any member to both the Executive Committee and the Audit and Standards Committee.
- 1.2 Although the Fire and Rescue Authority appoints Members to each Committee, all Members will continue to receive an electronic link to the agendas and paper and are welcome to attend any meeting, although they will not be permitted to participate unless invited by the Chairperson.
- 1.3 The Authority is required to appoint a Member to serve as Chairperson of the Audit and Standards Committee.
- 1.4 The Authority is asked to appoint Members from the Executive Committee into the following Lead Member roles:
 - Prevention and Protection
 - Emergency Response and Resilience
 - Workforce and Organisation Development
 - Assets and Collaboration
 - Data and Digital Transformation

Appendix 1 provides more information on the scope of each area.

- 1.5 The promotion and championing of equality, diversity, and inclusion (EDI), whether it be from a community or workforce perspective, is a key responsibility for all Members and Officers. Each Lead Member will promote and champion EDI as a part of their responsibilities.
- 1.6 Financial overview and scrutiny is incorporated into all five area with budget planning and monitoring reported to every FRA meeting and to the Audit and Standards Committee.
- 1.7 If Members were to notify the Monitoring Officer that they wish to be treated as political groups under <u>Local Government</u> (<u>Committees and Political Groups</u>) Regulations 1990 affiliated to the same parties as from their appointing councils the following table indicates how the seats would be apportioned.

Number of

4

3

3

12

seats

% of seats

ungrouped

33.33%

25%

25%

Executive

1.66

1.25

1.25

actual

Executive

rounded

2

1

1

5

ASC

2.33

1.75

1.75

actual

ASC

2

2

2

7

rounded

Labour

Conservative

Independent

L/D

LEAD MEMBER AREAS

Prevention and Protection

- Using a range of quantitative and qualitative analysis, we produce our Community Risk Analysis (CRA) document to help inform our work and ensure we are doing the right thing, using the right people and resources, provided in the right place and at the right time to help make Bedfordshire safer. We also work hard to improve our understanding of community risk through better and more innovative engagement with our diverse and hard to reach communities;
- We work to PREVENT fires and other emergencies from occurring in the first place with our firefighters, other front-line staff and
 partners undertaking thousands of safe and well visits each year, delivering fire and road safety talks in schools, and working with
 partner agencies to inform our communities about fire and road safety and reduce arson. Our vital role in safeguarding children
 and adults is also part of this portfolio;
- We also work to PROTECT people when emergencies do happen with our firefighters and fire safety officers undertaking
 inspections of workplaces, engaging with and educating owners and occupiers, taking enforcement action where necessary. The
 outcomes from the Building Regulation Review and the Public Inquiry into the Grenfell Tower tragedy have led to greater interest
 and investment by the Govt to expand our work in this important area.

Emergency Response & Resilience

- We RESPOND to emergencies including fires, road traffic collisions, air and rail crashes, water rescues and flooding, hazardous chemical incidents and many other types of emergencies;
- Our priority is to always ensure we always provide an effective and timely response to fires and other emergencies and to also continually review our emergency response cover to ensure our response resources and crewing arrangements are aligned to current and future risks;
- We also play an active part in the Bedfordshire Local Resilience Forum (BLRF); a multi- agency partnership formed to meet the requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004;

• Our organisational RESILIENCE is dependent on working closely with the NFCC and multi-agency and cross-border partners to develop and test emergency and business continuity plans and procedures and to continually learn from incidents.

Workforce & Organisational Development

- Our staff are our greatest asset, so if we are to be outstanding in everything we do, we must continually invest in developing and EMPOWERING our workforce. We strive to be an employer of choice, recruiting, retaining and developing a highly skilled and diverse workforce who uphold and model our values;
- We need to foster a positive and inclusive learning culture where all staff have a voice and provide a safe and healthy working environment with low absence, accidents and injuries;
- As well as investing in providing all our staff with the best training and development opportunities, we also need to develop our managers to value, lead, motivate, develop and empower their teams to be the best they can be;
- Our strategic planning and performance management framework needs to keep pace with the demands of a modern fire and rescue service, supported by effective programme and project management arrangements.

Assets & Collaboration

- We strive to UTILISE our assets and resources efficiently and effectively. We do this by providing the best facilities, vehicles, equipment and personal protective equipment (PPE) we can afford, to enable our staff to respond and support the range of emergency incidents and other activities that we attend in ways that are professional, effective and efficient;
- When investing we are mindful of our duty to collaborate and the national procurement agenda wherever there is a clear business case to do so, always seeking to specify, procure and maintain our assets under the principles of protecting the front line, improving firefighter safety, and providing value for money;
- We work closely with many partners including our blue light and local authority colleagues, viewing collaboration as an opportunity to reduce costs and improve services to the public, so we continue to explore new opportunities to work together through the Blue Light Collaboration Strategic Board;
- We also work in partnership with other fire and rescue services on both front line and support services, such as our shared strategic operational command arrangements and shared Information and Communications Technology (ICT) service with Cambridgeshire.

Data & Digital Transformation

- MAXIMISING the use of data and digital solutions to increase self-awareness and drive improvement has been a key focus during
 the life of this CRMP following feedback from our staff and 2018 HMICFRS inspection who told us that some of our IT systems
 and processes were hindering our productivity;
- We are striving to improve how we collect, store and utilise our data so our staff have greater insight into how we are performing and the risks we are working to reduce. Giving staff access to more information is enabling us to empower them to take greater ownership in driving improvements in everything we do, whilst allowing proper evaluation against our objectives;
- Digital technologies available today can act as real enablers, not only speeding up our processes but also generating intelligence through analysis that allows evidence-based decisions to be made about where best to utilise our resources. We would have struggled to respond effectively to the Covid19 pandemic had we not invested in mobile working technology. True digital transformation will improve the ways in which we work, how we interact with partners, the public and each other.

This page is intentionally left blank

SUBJECT:

Nicky Upton, Democratic & Regulatory Services Supervisor Author and contact: (Democratic.Services@bedsfire.gov.uk)

Background Papers: None

Appendix	Title	Protective Marking
	N/A	

Implications

This table provides a short statement of the impact of the recommendations in this report and/or a reference to the relevant paragraph/s in the report.

APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO OUTSIDE BODIES FOR 2023/24

Will this report affect any of the following?

	Yes / No	Impact / Reference
Financial Implications	Yes	Budget in place for Members' attendance at related conferences.
Risk Management	No	
Legal Implications	No	
Privacy and Security	No	
Implications		
Duty to Collaborate	No	

Health and Safety	No	
Implications		
Equality, Diversity and	No	
Inclusion		
Environmental	No	
Sustainability		
Consultation and	Yes	Details of Authority Representatives on outside bodies are publicly available on the
Communication		website.

PURPOSE:

To consider:

- 1. the appointment of representatives to serve on a number of external bodies in 2023/24
- 2. representation at the Local Government Association (LGA) Annual Fire Conference in 2024.

RECOMMENDATION:

- 1. That the Authority considers the appointment of:
 - a. up to two further representatives to serve with the Chair and Vice Chair on the LGA General Assembly
 - b. a representative to the LGA Fire Services Commission; and
- 2. That, consideration be given to the Chair, Vice Chair, and the Chief Fire Officer attending the LGA Annual Fire Conference in 2024
- 1. LGA General Assembly
- 1.1 The Fire and Rescue Authority is entitled to appoint up to four representatives to serve on the LGA General Assembly with the representatives entitled to cast up to eleven General Assembly votes and one corporate vote.

- 1.2 The Fire and Rescue Authority has previously agreed to appoint its Chair and Vice Chair to serve on the General Assembly with the Chair holding the eleven General Assembly votes and one corporate vote, with these being vested in the Vice Chair in the Chair's absence.
- 1.3 In 2022/23, the Fire and Rescue Authority also appointed as substitute representatives in addition to the Chair and Vice Chair.
- 2. LGA Fire Services Commission
- 2.1 In the past the Authority has appointed its Chair to serve on the LGA Fire Services Commission.
- 3 LGA Annual Fire Conference 2024: Date to be confirmed
- 3.1 The LGA hosts its Annual Fire Conference in March each year, date yet to be confirmed.
- 3.2 In the past, the Chair, Vice Chair and Chief Fire Officer have attended the conference on behalf of the Authority.

GRAHAM BRITTEN MONITORING OFFICER

This page is intentionally left blank

Author and contact:

Lauren Fair, Business Support Manager

Lauren.fair@bedsfire.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Prior years' FRA papers on Member Development

Appendix	Title	Protective Marking
Α	In house Member Development Calendar	
	2023/24	

Implications

This table provides a short statement of the impact of the recommendations in this report and/or a reference to the relevant paragraph/s in the report.

Will this report affect any of the following?

	Yes / No	Impact / Reference
Financial Implications	No	
Risk Management	No	
Legal Implications	No	
Privacy and Security Implications	No	
Duty to Collaborate	No	

Health and Safety	No	
Implications		
Equality, Diversity and	No	
Inclusion		
Environmental	No	
Sustainability		
Consultation and	Yes	Members will be consulted on the topics discussed and are invited to present
Communication		any additional training requirements that they feel are necessary to the role.

PURPOSE:

To consider arrangements for Fire and Rescue Authority Member development in 2023/24.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

It is recommended that:

1. the proposed arrangements for Member development in 2023/24 be noted

1. <u>Introduction</u>

- 1.1 The following sets out the normal schedule of Member development for the year, however, in the current circumstances Members may find that some of the events remain unscheduled at present or organisations are looking at alternative ways of holding conferences/training events.
- 1.2 Four dedicated Members' Development Days are included in the Fire and Rescue Authority's calendar for 2023/24; 4 July, 5 October, 30 November (combined with Budget Workshop No 1) and 29 February 2024. These are to cover items such as Community Risk Management, Data Literacy and Equality, Diversity & Inclusion. These diarised development days are to ensure that Members receive appropriate updates or training that Members request.

- 1.3 As noted above, Members are to attend two Budget Workshops on 30 November 2023 and 25 January 2024 to review and consider the Budget for 2024/25 onwards. The workshops will also review and input into the development of the Fire and Rescue Authority's Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP).
- 1.4 To complement these arrangements, and to provide an informal means of holding discussions with Station personnel, there will be a programme of regular Members' visits to Fire Stations. These will be organised following the Annual Meeting; it is currently proposed that there will be 4 visits a year and will be held during the evening of the Member Development days.
- 1.5 The LGA hosts a Fire Conference annually in March; the 2024 Conference date is yet to be confirmed.
- 2. Members' Development Day: 4 July 2023
- 2.1 It is currently planned for the first Members' Development Day to include detail regarding the current Community Risk Management Plan provided by the Head of Strategic Support and Assurance and the Head of Prevention and Protection.
- 1.2 The items to be covered at future Members Development Days can be discussed in due course, so Members can request what is to be included.
- 3. LGA Fire Leadership Essentials Programme
- 3.1 Previously the LGA ran a variety of face-to-face development programmes, including Leadership Essentials for fire and rescue. The LGA continues to support fire and rescue authority Members to develop leadership skills but following the pandemic have refocused their activity to bring together already available resources including a webinar series to look at a range of issues related to governance in the fire and rescue sector:

Leading the fire sector: Governance support | Local Government Association

4. Station Visits

- 4.1 As previously agreed, a programme of visits to fire stations will commence over the year. This is to familiarise Members with different types of appliances or equipment, as well as providing an opportunity to talk to station personnel.
- 4.2 A programme of Members' visits to stations has been in place since 2006 to provide Members with:
 - A greater awareness of the changing role of the Fire and Rescue Service from a local perspective;
 - An understanding and appreciation of the impact of future planning and budget decisions; and
 - An understanding, both strategically and locally, of the rationale behind integrated risk management.
- 4.3 These will be organised following the Annual Meeting; there will be 4 visits a year and will be held during the evening following the Member Development days.

5. Further Development

5.1 An early indication of planned Member development activities for Members is noted at Appendix A to this report and this is to be added following further discussion with Members. Timings are to be confirmed and will be ascertained once the content of each day is confirmed.

ANDREW HOPKINSON CHIEF FIRE OFFICER

IN-HOUSE MEMBER DEVELOPMENT CALENDAR 2023/24

DATE	SUBJECT	CONTENTS	COMMENT
4 July 2023	Members' Development Day No 1	Community Risk Management & Community Outreach.	As discussed and agreed with the Executive Committee at their
		Community Oddicacii.	meeting on 10 th January 2023.
5 October 2023	Members' Development Day No 2	Equality, Diversity and Inclusion.	As discussed and agreed with the Executive Committee at their meeting on 10 th January 2023.
30 November 2023	Combined Members' Development Day (3) / Budget Workshop (1)	Data Literacy and Budget Workshop Preparation	As discussed and agreed with the Executive Committee at their meeting on 10 th January 2023.
25 January 2024	Budget Workshop No 2		To review the budget position and work towards the February 2024 Fire Authority meeting which sets the Budget and Precept for 2024/25.
29 February 2024	Member's Development Day No 4	Community Risk Management Planning	Review and input for 2024/25 CRMP planning

This page is intentionally left blank